

San Francisco Youth Commission Minutes Monday, December 5th, 2022 5:00pm

Held via Videoconference

(remote public access provided via teleconference)

Members: Chloe Wong, Allister Adair, Qien Feng, Maureen Loftus, Hayden Miller, Gabrielle Listana, Ann Anish, Astrid Utting, Yoselin Colin, Vanessa Pimentel, Emily Nguyen, Ewan Barker Plummer, Steven Hum, Raven Shaw, Sahara Frett, Yena Im, Tyron S. Hillman III

Present: Chloe Wong, Allister Adair, Maureen Loftus, Hayden Miller, Gabrielle Listana, Ann Anish, Yoselin Colin, Vanessa Pimentel, Emily Nguyen, Ewan Barker Plummer, Steven Hum, Raven Shaw, Yena Im, Tyron S. Hillman III

Absent: Qien Feng (unexcused), Astrid Utting (excused), Sahara Frett (unexcused).

The San Francisco Youth Commission met in-person and provided public comment through teleconferencing, on Monday December 5th, 2022, with Chair Nguyen presiding.

Chair Nguyen calls the meeting order at 5:12pm.

1. Call to Order and Roll Call for Attendance

On the call of the roll, the below Commissioners were noted presently.

Roll Call Attendance: 14 present, 3 absent.

Chloe Wong present
Allister Adair present
Qien Feng absent
Maureen Loftus present
Hayden Miller present
Gabrielle Listana present
Ann Anish present
Astrid Utting absent
Yoselin Colin present
Vanessa Pimentel present
Emily Nguyen present
Ewan Barker Plummer present
Steven Hum present



Raven Shaw present Sahara Frett absent Yena Im present Tyrone S. Hillman III present

A quorum of the Commission was present.

Vice Chair Barker Plummer, seconded by Commissioner Hum, motioned to excuse Commissioner Utting. The motion was carried by the following voice vote:

Voice Vote: 14 ayes, 3 absent.

Chloe Wong aye Allister Adair aye Qien Feng absent Maureen Loftus aye Hayden Miller aye Gabrielle Listana aye Ann Anish aye Astrid Utting absent Yoselin Colin aye Vanessa Pimentel aye Emily Nguyen aye Ewan Barker Plummer aye Steven Hum aye Raven Shaw aye Sahara Frett absent Yena Im aye Tyrone S. Hillman III aye

Action: Commissioner Utting's absence excused.

2. Communications

Alondra Esquivel Garcia, Director of the San Francisco Youth Commission, shared communications and meeting announcements with the Commissioners.

3. Approval of Agenda

Chair Nguyen inquired whether any Commissioner had any changes to the December 5th, 2022, Full Youth Commission agenda. There were no changes.

No discussion. No public comment.

Commissioner Miller, seconded by Commissioner Colin, motioned to approve December 5th, 2022, Full Youth Commission Agenda. The motion was carried by voice vote:



Voice Vote: 14 ayes, 3 absent.

Chloe Wong aye Allister Adair aye Qien Feng absent Maureen Loftus aye Hayden Miller aye Gabrielle Listana aye Ann Anish aye Astrid Utting absent Yoselin Colin aye Vanessa Pimentel aye Emily Nguyen aye Ewan Barker Plummer aye Steven Hum aye Raven Shaw aye Sahara Frett absent Yena Im aye Tyrone S. Hillman III aye

Action: Agenda approved.

4. Approval of Minutes November 21st, 2022

Chair Nguyen inquired whether any Commissioner had any changes to the November 21st, 2022, Full Youth Commission Minutes. There were no changes. No discussion. No public comment.

Commissioner Colin, seconded by Commissioner Listana, motioned to approve the November 21st, 2022 Full Youth Commission Minutes. The motion was carried by the following voice vote:

Voice Vote: 14 ayes, 3 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Qien Feng absent
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting absent
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Emily Nguyen aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye



Raven Shaw aye Sahara Frett absent Yena Im aye Tyrone S. Hillman III aye

Action: Minutes approved.

5. Public Comment on Items not on Agenda

No public comment.

6. Approving Revised Meeting Schedule for January 2023 (Discussion Item and Action Item) Presenter: YC Staff

Commissioner Loftus asked for a clarification of when the Civic Engagement Committee will meet in January since these new dates conflict. Commissioner Im asked about the retreat dates. Commissioner Shaw amended her motion to include January 14-15 instead of January 21 due to a mistake on the dates.

Officer Shaw, seconded by Vice Chair Barker Plummer, motioned to approve the revised meeting schedule for January 2023.

No public comment.

The motion was carried by the following voice vote:

Voice Vote: 14 ayes, 3 absent.

Chloe Wong aye Allister Adair aye Qien Feng absent Maureen Loftus aye Hayden Miller aye Gabrielle Listana aye Ann Anish aye Astrid Utting absent Yoselin Colin ave Vanessa Pimentel aye Emily Nguyen aye Ewan Barker Plummer aye Steven Hum aye Raven Shaw ave Sahara Frett absent Yena Im ave Tyrone S. Hillman III aye



Action: revised January 2023 calendar approved.

7. Housing & Land Use Committee Name Change to Housing, Recreation, and Transit Committee (Discussion Item and Action Item) Presenter: Housing and Land Use Committee

Commissioner Miller explained the reasoning for changing the name of the committee, in order to more accurately describe the discussion and action done within the committee.

No public comment.

Commissioner Adair motions to approve, Commissioner Wong seconds. The motion was carried by the following voice vote:

Voice Vote: 14 ayes, 3 absent.

Chloe Wong aye Allister Adair aye Qien Feng absent Maureen Loftus aye Hayden Miller aye Gabrielle Listana aye Ann Anish aye Astrid Utting absent Yoselin Colin aye Vanessa Pimentel aye Emily Nguyen aye Ewan Barker Plummer aye Steven Hum aye Raven Shaw aye Sahara Frett absent Yena Im aye Tyrone S. Hillman III aye

Action: HLU name change to HRT approved.

8. Civic Engagement Committee Name Change to Civic Engagement and Education Committee (Discussion Item and Action Item) Presenter: Civic Engagement Committee

Commissioner Loftus explained that education is a critical aspect of youth's lives, and because so much of the work on the Youth Commission is based on education, that this name change would be more accurate. LAO Hum recognized that the CEC would work with the SFUSD Student Advisory Council to collaborate on education issues.

No public comment.



Commissioner Colin motions to approve, Commissioner Im seconds. The motion was carried by the following voice vote:

Voice Vote: 14 ayes, 3 absent.

Chloe Wong aye Allister Adair aye Qien Feng absent Maureen Loftus aye Hayden Miller aye Gabrielle Listana aye Ann Anish ave Astrid Utting absent Yoselin Colin aye Vanessa Pimentel aye Emily Nguyen aye Ewan Barker Plummer aye Steven Hum aye Raven Shaw aye Sahara Frett absent Yena Im aye Tyrone S. Hillman III aye

Action: CEC name change to CEEC approved.

9. Slow Streets Resolution (Second Reading and Action Item) Presenter: Commissioner Miller and Co-Sponsor Commissioner Hum

Commissioner Miller went over the amendments that he and Officer Hum worked on since the first reading. He also added a clause specifically for the BOS and Mayor to support the permanence of the Lake Slow Street, since SFMTA had no recommendation. Commissioner Miller and Officer Hum read the final resolution language aloud. Vice Chair Barker Plummer highlighted an amendment to Clause 3, and Commissioner Loftus asked for clarification on Equity Priority Communities.

No public comment.

Vice Chair Barker Plummer, seconded by Officer Hum, motions to pass the resolution with the amended language. The motion was carried by the following roll call vote:

Roll Call Vote: 14 ayes, 3 absent.

Chloe Wong aye Allister Adair aye Qien Feng absent Maureen Loftus aye



Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting absent
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Emily Nguyen aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye
Raven Shaw aye
Sahara Frett absent
Yena Im aye
Tyrone S. Hillman III aye

Action: Resolution in Support of Slow Streets approved.

Bus Stops Resolution (Second Reading and Action Item) Presenter: Commissioner Miller with Co-Sponsors Commissioner Barker Plummer, Commissioner Hum, and Commissioner Nguyen

Commissioner Miller and Officer Hum highlighted the changes in the resolution since the first reading, and then read the final resolution language aloud. Commissioner Miller, Chair Nguyen, and Commissioner Adair highlighted grammatical amendments. Staff will assist in the grammatical amendments within the resolution, and they will be reflected in the minutes at the following full Youth Commission meeting.

No public comment.

Officer Hum motions, seconded by Commissioner Miller, to approve the resolution including grammatical amendments and footnotes. The motion was carried by the following roll call vote:

Roll Call Vote: 14 ayes, 3 absent.

Chloe Wong aye
Allister Adair aye
Qien Feng absent
Maureen Loftus aye
Hayden Miller aye
Gabrielle Listana aye
Ann Anish aye
Astrid Utting absent
Yoselin Colin aye
Vanessa Pimentel aye
Emily Nguyen aye
Ewan Barker Plummer aye
Steven Hum aye



Raven Shaw aye Sahara Frett absent Yena Im aye Tyrone S. Hillman III aye

Action: Resolution urging the SFMTA to remove parking at all transit stops and implement transit stop signage and wayfinding improvements approved.

11. Debrief of SHARP Youth Town Hall on Sexual Violence & Gender-Based Violence (Discussion Item) Presenter: Chair Nguyen and Commissioner Miller

Chair Nguyen highlighted her summary and overall main points and takeaways from the SHARP Town Hall. Commissioner Miller and Commissioner Colin briefly commented on their takeaways. Vice Chair Barker Plummer asked about information regarding the Safer Schools Task Force, and staff responded that they haven't responded. Commissioner Colin asked if there were any updates on the resolution on the topic of sexual assault, and Commissioner Loftus gave an update on where that resolution stands.

No public comment.

12. Mid-Year Retreat (Discussion Item) Presenter: YC Staff

Director Esquivel Garcia stated that calendar invitations have been sent out for January 14th and 15th, and if there were any further requests from Commissioners to include on the retreat agenda. Specialist Zhan highlighted that community circles, budget advocacy / planning / priorities, community organizing, and committee breakout sessions will be the main focuses on the retreat. Vice Chair Barker Plummer asked if staff could clarify their specific roles so Commissioners know who to contact. Chair Nguyen asked if we could do an update on how far the Commission has come on their priorities. Staff also clarified that the retreat will be public and minutes will be taken. Commissioner Miller and Commissioner Anish asked specifically about the dates of the retreat, and how flexible they can be. Commissioners and staff discussed each preference for the schedule of the retreat.

No public comment.

13. Committee Reports (Discussion Item)

A. Executive Committee

a. Legislative Affairs Officers

Officer Hum and Officer Shaw listed the legislation that has been referred to the Youth Commission. Vice Chair Barker Plummer said he would prefer legislation be only referred to and acted on by the full Youth Commission, since any action can only be taken by a majority vote of the full Commission. Multiple commissioners expressed the need for a review of the Youth Commission bylaws to have a clear understanding of the limitations of how the Commission can respond to referred legislation.



b. Communication and Outreach Officers

Officer Listana gave updates regarding recent social media posts of recent YC actions, drafting podcast episodes, and social media takeovers.

c. General Committee Updates

1. Committee Retreats Debrief

Commissioner Colin debriefed the Transformative Justice Committee retreat and discussed their committee goals and reasons they joined the committee.

2. Youth Commission Attendance

Director Esquivel Garcia went over the full Youth Commission attendance, and passed out the current record of attendance. She also stated that their attendance will be shared with their appointing officers. Staff went over the attendance policy to clarify.

Vice Chair Barker Plummer gave updates. Commissioner Colin asked for a follow-up email and calendar invite for the December 14th leadership training at the scheduled Executive Committee.

B. Housing and Land Use Committee

Commissioner Anish gave updates from the most recent HRT committee meeting.

C. Civic Engagement Committee

Commissioner Loftus and Officer Hum have no updates, since there's been no CEEC meeting since the last full Youth Commission meeting.

D. Transformative Justice Committee

Commissioner Colin gave updates and said that the Transformative Justice Committee was not able to meet due to lack of quorum.

E. LGBTQ+ Task Force

Officer Listana gave updates on the election of the Chair and Vice Chair of the Task Force, in addition to creating legislative priorities for the Task Force.

14. Staff Report (Discussion Item)

Director Esquivel Garcia gave an update on commissioners' status on the online trainings, key youth seat vacancies amongst citywide commissions and committees, the arrival of the German Youth Council that's visiting San Francisco in the Summer of 2023, and topics to discuss at the Mid-Year Retreat.



Specialist Zhan gave updates on the Mid-Year Retreat for Commissioners to send their priorities during the retreat, appointing officer 1:1 meeting updates, the Fun Friday event on Friday, and the Leadership Training taking place at the December 14th Executive Committee meeting.

Specialist Ochoa gave brief updates on the BOS Land Use and Transportation Committee regarding legislation referred to the Commission, the Youth Community Convener on January 11th, any requests to the Mid-Year Retreat for activities or facilities, and the Civic Center Tree Lighting ceremony on December 7th.

No public comment.

15. Announcements, including Community Events.

Vice Chair Barker Plummer let commissioners know about the Interfaith Annual Vigil for Victims of Gun Violence on Saturday, December 10th at the Third Baptist Church of SF, starting at 3pm.

16. Adjournment

There being no further business, the Youth Commission adjourned at 7:14pm.